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WASHTENAW RATLROADS
Fantasies and Facts
by Louls S. White, Ypsilanti

The golden age of railroad development 1in the eastern part of
our country, covered a period from the early 1830!'s to about 1900,
Reams have been written on the subjJect; mlillions have been made and
millions lost. ©Some of these projects were successful, due to actual
need and the sterling character of the men behind them, while others
were fallures, either by intention or lack of character on the part
of the promoters.

The stories of the faillures lie in musty newspaper files, in
court records, and in our county and state histories. Occasionally
flamboyant stock certificates will come to light testifylng to the
skillful persuasive ability of the geller and the gullibility of the
purchaser, However, 1t has always been thus in many lines of en-
deavor in this land of free enterprise, and we could well be chari-
table and say that the promoters of the fallures in rallroad ventures
had the best of intentions,

Cne of the most interesting of these fantasies, at least as 1t
affected Ypsllanti, wag the Ypsilanti and Tecumseh Reallroad., It was
incorporated by State Legislative Act No. &4, of 1838, Note that
this makes it a contemporary of the Detroit and St., Joseph R.R,
(later the Michigan Gentral% which started operation to ¥Ypsilanti in
the same year,

There 1s an interesting story concerning this incident. The
Ypsilanti and Tecumsch R.B. acquired a depot site at the southwest
corner of Adams and Cross Strects., It had been the general talk and
belief that the Detroit and St. Joseph would pass through Ypsilanti
on the west side of the Huron River and thus form a junction with
the proposed Ypsilanti and Tecumseh R.R, Acting on this assumption,
a group of citizens, including A. H. Ballard, Marcus Lane, Shubal
Conant, DeGarmo Joneg, and LeGrand Morse, formed the "Detrolt Land
Ca," and built a huge brick hotel on the site of the present Central
High School building. However, as to the busy and profitable
Junction of the two rallroads, the gods willed otherwise, Mr, Mark
Norris, a large landowner, mlller and merchant of the east side,
using his considerable influence, persuaded the bullders of the
Detroit and St, Joseph to buy his land and build thereon. This turn
of events left the Ypsilanti and Tecumseh Railroad and the huge
brick "Tecumseh Hotel" high and dry and with no visible means of



support. Some traces of the grading for the roadbed of the
Ypsilanti and Tecumsch can still be scen in Pittsfield Township and
probably in other spots as well,

In 1871, a "horse rallway" was contemplated between Belleviile
and Denton., It was to be known ag "The Belleville and Denton Trib-
utary Tram Railway Co." Judging from the neme. tram cars were to be
used, probably on rails on a private right--of-way. The capltal
stock was to be $25,000, Those intcrested in the venture were T. M.
Cody, Wm. H. Marvin, W, B, Warnepr, . H, Canmpbell, Dr. Thornton,

8. Y. Denton, G, H. Burroughs, and L. Haskin, 3000 was pledged.

Among other fantasles wcrec:
The lonroe and Ypsilanti R.R., incorporated March 28, 1836,
The Toledo, Ypsilanti and Saginaw Alr Line Ry, incorporated Jan, 25,
1870, Tcrmini, the Township of Bedford in Monroc County and the
Village of Holly.
among other proposed rallroads intended to serve this arca were:
The Lionroe and Ann Arbor R.R. Incorporated Mar., 28, 1836. Termini
Monroe and Ann Arbor
The Monroe and Ypsilanti R.,R. Incorporated same date as above,
Possibly the promoters figured that if onc didn't succeed, the other
would. Capital $400,000, Termini, Monroe and Ypsilanti., The time
limit was extended by Act #43 of 1845,
The Canada Southern and Chicago R.R. Articles filed Nov. 28, 1270,
Capital 800,000, Termini, the Detroit River and Hillsdale,
The East Saginaw and ann arbor R.R., Articles filed Nov, 30, 1869,
Capital ,2,000,000.
The Toledo, Ann Arbor and Saginaw R.R. Articles filed Aug. 15, 1866,
Capital 1,000,000,
_ The Toledo, Ann Arbor and Northern R,R, Articles filed Nov, 26, 1869

In the vicinity of York Cemetery in York Township, on a north
and south road, will be found extensive remains of some proposed
railroad, It was apparently headed toward Ypsilanti, The particu-
lar thing I noticed was the necessary concrete abutments to carry
the track over a small stream. Possibly some of the residents of
that viclnity could clear up this matter., Take o ride down there
some pleasant summer day and see what can be found out,

The Wabash R.R., This road was completed through the lower edge
of Washtenaw County in 18&1, passing through Milan, which town lles
partly in lionroe and partly 1n Washtenaw County. The Wabasgh is a
Class 1, double-tracked reilroad, but as 1ts Influence on the Wash-
tenaw area 1is not great, 1ts hilstory 1s not considered here.

The Ann Arbor R.R. The Ann Arbor Railroad Uo,, or rather #%%
ancestor, the Toledo, Ann Arbor and Northern R.R. Co., was incorated
Nov. 26, 1869, Probably no dther railroad passed through so many
changes in mame and proprietorship as did this road. From 1869 to
the present time, when we know it as part of the Wabash system,
there have been 18 changes in name. Six of the companies bullt no
actual road. Probably the various aliases were asgssumed to escape
the numerous legal entanglements which embarrassed the grandiose
railroad schemes of those days. It was the custom to conduct whirl-
wind advertising campaigns, se¢ll stock to individuals, towns,
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villages, and cities, then squeeze them out and buy up the stock
at rock bottom prices.

However, the road was bullt by stages 1in somewhat thls fashion:
From Toledo, 5 miles by 1874; to Ann Arbor, 40 miles by 1878; to
South Lyon, 15 miles by 1881; to Cadillac, 176 miles by 1886; and to
Frankfort, 72 miles by 1897. The line has now been reducecd so that
it now comprises about 294 miles.

Not being very famillar with the Ann Arbor R.R., except as I
have observed 1t at Ann Arbor and Milan, I am not in a position to
make many comments concerning it., One thing I have noted 1s that,
in the bygone days of steam motive power, its locomotives were huge
and 1ts trains long, at least on its through service, Dlegel power
has now largely supplanted stesam, as with most railroads,

I doubt if the Ann Arbor Rallroad ever bragged much about its
erstwhile passenger service, which has now bean abandoned, I recall
that my daughter once attended a girls! camp up near Frankfort, The
girls madc the trip up and back on a so-called passenger train, which
stopped almost anywhere and was in no hurry at all, The crew must
have had as much fun as did the gilrls, according to storles related,

The across~Lake-Michigan service, between Frankfort, Michigan,
and llanitowoc, Wisconsin, a distance of about 320 miles, 1s of the
greatest importance to the Ann Arbor R.R, It cooperates with and
has direct connecctions with 18 railroads, thus maintaining a short
route between eastern trunk-line rallroads at Tolecdo and the north-
west Paciflc coast area, out of Manltowoce.

, The Detroit, Hillsdale and Indlana R.R. This road was opened
to Manchester, Oct, 1, 1870, and to Hillsdale, Jan, 23, 1871. It
was sold at auction, Dec, 28, 1874, and the name changed to the
Detroit, Hillsdale and Southern R.R., Daniel L. Quirk, Pres., and

W. ¥, Parker, Supt.,, with hecadquarters at Ypsilanti, The first
service provided trains leaving Hillsdale at 4:40 a,m, and 1:25 pP.Mm.,
and returning at 12:45 and 10:%5 p.m,

The Michigan Central R.R. In early Michigan railroad history,
the State Legilslaturce settled on a plan providing for thrae routes
across our state. They were known as the northern, ccntral, and
southern routes, The northern was to start at Port Huron, the
central at Detroit, and the southern at Monroe, All wandered wost-
ward, rather nsbulously, 1in the general direction of Lake Michigan
and Chicago,

From the intense political wars of the time, three present-day
rallroads emcrged. The northern route became our present Grand
Trunk Western Ry.; the central route became what 1s now known as the
Michigan Central District of the New York Contral System; and the
gouthern route 1s now the Monroe Branch of the New York Central
(L, S, & k. S. Ry.) The latter railroad has been partially abandoned
and has no rogular scrvice. Since our interest this evening lies in
thz central route, we willl consider that in more dgstall, at least
in so far as it affceots the Washt naw arca,
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The ancestor of the Michigan Central was a private corporation,
the Detroit and Sty Josceph R.R. Co. This company purchascd right-
Of-way and constructed the road as far as Dearborn carly in 183%7, In
that same yecar, the State of Mibhigan purchased the chartered rights
and all the cquipment of the Detroit and S5t. Joseph., Governor
Stephens T. llason assigned Commissioner David C. McKingtry, of thHe
State Board of Internal Improvements, to make progress in the work on
the central route. He at once busiced himself in hiring engineerd
and getting the work underway.

Through the summer, autumn, and even into the carly winter of
1837, the partics pushed their work wlth such great vigor, under the
ablg dircction of Commissioner McKinstry, that sarly completlon of
tne work as far as Ypsllantl was assurcd, Thus 1t was that on Faeb-
ruary &, 1838, the first passenger train arrived in Ypsilanti. It
was an cvent of more than ordinary importance, and prceparation was
made to celebrate 1t with befitting pomp and geremony, The popula-
tion was out ¢n masse to witness tho arrival of the train. The crude
little locomotive, wlth cord wood piled high on the tender, was fol-
lowed by the privatce car, "the Governor Mason," then by three cars
of lz2sser elegance, and throe rough cars 1mprovised for the occasion,
Aboard the traln were Governor Mason himself, many members of the
Legislature, the Commissloncers of Internal Improv\monts numarous
prominent ecitlzens, and the Brady Guards of Detroit. The wolcoma
was hearty but boilsterous., Goneral John Van Fossen, a promincnt
citizen of Ypsilanti, d*livered to the Governor an engrossed copy of
a congratulatory address phrascd in the exultant style of the day.

Prusent at all those "goings-on! was an &~ycar old boy, Theodore
B, Potter, of Saline, wno 1n later 1ife described the scene as
follows: “hy father went and took me with him. Wa found the one
street finely decorated with flags and a brasgs band., We next visited
the place where the ox was being roasted over a huge fire, Then we
went to the depot to witness the arrival of the first train from
Detroit, on which were the officcres of the road, with General
[Lowlg/ Cass and other prominent men, About two inches of snow had
fallen and when the train came in sight on the slight up grade ncar
town, 1% prcsented the novel spectacle of two men sitting on opposlte
ehds of a cross beam in front of the engine, holding large splint
brooms to swoecp the snow off the track, That was the first and
original snow plow, After the dinner of roast ox, baked potatocs,
pumpkin pies and ginger-bread, we all listened to many orations,"

On the return trip to Detrolt, the englne camo to a dead halt
at Dearbornville and rcfused to bp of any further service., Horses
were procurcd and without further accident the men reached Detroit,
benumbed with cold but burning with glory.

On Oct, 17, 1839, a big parade and celebration in Ann Arbor
markaed the arrival of the first passcenger traln there., People came
from all around to witness-the big event., Mr, Jamesg Kingsley of Ann
Arbor cxtended a welcome to the visitors., The line of march for the
parade was up Detroit St. to Fourth, then to William, to Main, and
north to the public square. Taking part again werc the Detrolt Brady
Guards, thc Washtcnaw Guards, and the Pittsfield Riflcemen. Mr,
Thomas Moscely was Marshall of the Day,
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The Michigan Central R.R. Co, acquired the Oentral R.R, from
the State of Michigan &n Sept., 23, 1846, The price was $2,000,000.
The road was completed to Dexter, June 30, 1841; to Albion, June 25,
1844; to Marshall, Aug, 12, 1844; to Battle Creek, Nov, 25, 1845; and
to Kalamazoo, Feb, 2, 1846, The construction thus far was done by
the State of Michigan. After the purchase by the Michigan Central
R.R. Co., the road was completed to Niles in the autumn of 1848; to
New Buffalo in the spring of 1849; to Michigan City in the autumn of
1850; and to Chicago in May, 1852. The last stage was interrupted by
many legal battles concerning charters. Abraham Lincoln participated
in some of these court actions,

Since this is not a history, but merely a dissertation on "Rail-
roads" we will merely add that the Michigan Central has pro _gressed
through the years to "double tracking,!" "automatic block signalg,'
automatic train control, and now to Diesel power supplanting the be-
lovad "iron horse" gteam locomotive, An improvement now in service
on some parts of the New York Central and to be expected elsewhere
is CTC -~ Centralized Traffic Control, By this system, one man may
control the movement of many trains and the necessity of multiple
tracks 1s eliminated,

Electric Railroadg. January 9, 1891, the ann Arbor and Ypsilanti
Street Rallway Co. began operating what was popularly known as "The
Steam Motor Line" between Ypsilanti and the Ann Arbor city limits,

At that polnt passengers were transferred to the cars of the Ann Arbor
Electric Street Railway and conveyed into the city. Later in the

same month arrangements were completed whereby passengers were car-
ried into Ann Arbor by the Motor Line, thus affording better service,

By S8S:pt., 1892, a track down So, Washington St, in Ypsilanti had
been completed so that trains could go to the new station, turn
around and come out "head first," instead of backing up Washington
5t. A new car barn and yard along Harrict St., from Washington to
Adams, were also complected.

On Nov, 20, 1896, the elcectric car made its first trial trip, and
burned out a gencrator., The Stcam Motor Line cecased operating and
the clectric car made its first scheduled trip to Ann Arbor on
Thursday, Nov, 26, 1896. The first car on the new electric line from
Detroit to Ypsilanti ran to Dearborn, Dec, 24, 1897, thec tracks laid
to St, Joscphls Retreat., May 19, 1898, electric tracks were laid
through thec city of Ypsilanti, except on the Congress St. bridge.
On Saturday, Sept., &, 1898, the first trip by slectric car , Wayne to
Ypsilanti. The small "Ypsi-ann" car was used. The trip was made
about every two hours, Sept. 25, 1898, the first new car went through,
olive—~green and very roomy., July 12, 1898, the first clectric car ran
through to Detroit from Ypsilanti., Jan,, 1899, thc stecl for the
D,J & C, car barns (now Wrigley's store) on East Oongress (now East
Michigan) was expected soon., June, 1899, the first car on the Saline
Electric Line started operating, only about 5 miles., Sept. 5, 1899,
the Ypgilantl and Saline Electric Line formally opened, cars leaving
every half hour from 6:15 a.m. to 4:l45 p.m, May, 1901, work begun on
enlargement of D, J & C. powcrhouse, Jan, 18, 1902, the first
Detroit to Jackson through car on the D, Y, A,A, & J Ry, passed
through ¥Ypsilanti; trip 1 hour, 45 minutes, cars to run every 2 hours.



Aug, 11, 1934, work begun on removing D, J & C tracks on East
iichigan in Ypsilanti.

The Underground Rallway. /Although not technically "railroad
history," this subject is figuratively so closely related that the
following description of routes in opceration locally betwecen 1840 and
1860, taken from a May, 1885, issue of The Ypsilantis will be of
intercst./ )

Onc route centered Michigan in Cass County,., the first station
being the Quaekcr Scttlement, thence to Cassopolis and Climax, to
Battle Crock, where Erastus Hussey had charge,

From Battle Creck it followed the route of the Michigan Central
to llarshall, in charge of Jabcz S, Fitch; Albion, Edwin L. Johnson,
agent; Parma, Townsend £, Gidley; Jackson, Louson Wilcox and Norman
Allen; hilchlgan Center, Abljah Fitch; Francisco, M. Francisco; Dexter,
Samucl W. Dexter; Scio, Theodore Foster; Ann Arbor, Guy Beckley and
Jacob Volland; Geddes, Richard Glazier.

Thenee tp Plymouth and Detroit to Canada, MMany however by
¥Ypsilanti, Trenton, and Grosse Islc.

another route entered from Ohio to Adrian, wherce Mrs, Laura
Haviland had charge; thencc to Tecumsch, with R, L. Hall; thence to
the Queker Settlement in Ypsilanti Township; thence to Detrolt and
Trenton,

Referenceg consulted,
Chapman, History of Washtenaw County. 18&L1,
Colburn, Story of Ypsilanti. 1923.
The £Bvening Times (Ann Arbor and Ypsilanti) filces,
liichigan Association of Railroads rccords
Potter, Theodore E., Autoblography.
The ¥Ypsilantli Commercial files,
The Ypsilanti Sontinel M
The Ypsilantian "

Ypsilanti, Michigan
February 15, 1955

We have to report this month the loss of one old-~time member by
deaths Mr. B(enjamin) Frank(lin) Ohlinger, on Jan. 14, 1955. Mr,
Ohlinger was closely tied in with Washtenaw'!s history and even with
one angle of this evening's paper, in that he worked as a young
printer's apprentice in the office of The ¥Ypsilantian, the old files
of which were consulted by lr. White for data for his paper.

Another tie~in of interest 1s the fact that Ben (as he was called in
those days, not Frank) learned the beginnings of the trade in which
he became so expert from The Ypsilantian'!s editor and part-owner,
Gzorge C. Smithe, father of Geneva Smithe, your present Washtenaw
Impressions editor!
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